1986

Vernon S. Cheever v. Joseph A. Seethaler : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

1. Whether Appellants made an effective joinder of necessary and indispensable parties.

2. Whether the THIRD AMENDED COMPLAINT stated a cause of action for fraud and whether or not such disputed issues were before the District Court to prevent Summary Judgment in favor of Respondents and against Appellants.

3. Whether or not Appellant may maintain an independent cause of action as surety.

4. Whether or not the Appellants compromised their claim with the Respondents prior to filing this action.

5. Whether or not the pleadings, depositions, affidavits, and admissions show that there is no genuine issue of material fact and that the Respondents were entitled to a judgment as a matter of law.

6. Whether the Appellant, VERNON S. CHEEVER, may act in two separate capacities; one as President of Utah County Packing at one time and as a separate individual at another time.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

BRIEFLY THE NATURE OF THE CASE, involves the sale of a meat packing plant by the Respondents, JOSEPH A. SEETHALER and MYRA K. SEETHALER, to UTAH COUNTY PACKING COMPANY INC., and the fraud that was committed in the closing of the transaction on June 10, 1981 wherein the Appellants, VERNON S. CHEEVER and MARTHA T. CHEEVER, without reading the document, TRUST DEED NOTE, EXHIBIT 1 herein, and the DEED OF TRUST with assignment of Rents, EXHIBIT 2 herein. Appellant Martha T. Cheever did not sign the note, Exhibit 1, but did sign the DEED OF TRUST, Exhibit 2. They had both thought that they were limited in their obligation to \$25,000.00 as "guarantors". Of greater importance is the FRAUD committed by the Appellant, JOSEPH A. SEETHALER, in his representations of the nature of the equipment as he showed the Meat Packing Plant to the Appellants. If the Appellants would have known the true facts of the condition of the equipment, and the fraudulent representations of the Respondent, they never would have consented to be "guarantors" on Exhibit 1 and never would have pledged their home as security for their performance on Exhibit 2.

THE COURSE OF THE PROCEEDINGS was initiated by the Plaintiffs/Appellants, by filing a complaint which,

amongst other things, seeks relief from their responsibilities under Exhibit 1 and Exhibit 2. The THIRD AMENDED COMPLAINT, Second Cause of Action, requests an Order releasing Plaintiffs from their collateral described on Exhibit B and decree that Exhibit A and B are void and of no effect because of the conduct of the Appellant, JOSEPH A. SEETHALER by reason of his fraudulent misrepresentation of the equipment during the sale. The case is the most protracted and ludicrous law suit in which there have been at least three trial settings and the filing of 825 paginated pages which resulted in a Summary Judgment against the Appellants.

THE DISPOSITION IN THE COURT BELOW resulted in the Court entering Summary Judgment against Appellants, a copy of which is attached hereto as EXHIBIT 3.

THE FACTS RELEVANT TO THE ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW are as follows:

(all references to the paginated Record will be referred to as PR.)

1. Exhibit 1, was only signed by one of the Plaintiffs, Vernon S. Cheever; it was not signed by the Appellant, Martha T. Cheever.

2. Exhibit 2, was signed by both of the Appellants pledging their residence as security for the debt of UTAH COUNTY PACKING INC.

3. The Appellants alleged that they were tricked into signing Exhibit 1 and Exhibit 2 in the amount of \$371,000.00 instead of \$25,000.00. (See Exhibits 18, 19, and Exhibit 16.

4. UTAH COUNTY PACKING INC., a Utah Corporation, has been adjudicated in Bankruptcy. (PR 638, 618)

5. Vernon S. Cheever, in executing Exhibit 1 executed the document in two separate capacities; one as President of Utah County Packing Inc. and also in his separate capacity as an individual.

6. EXHIBIT 4, PR 580-581, is the MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT upon which Defendants have based their dismissal. The MOTION lists four separate grounds for dismissal of the Complaint; they are as follows:

1. The Actions by the Corporate Plaintiffs are barred by the applicable statute of limitation.

2. The Plaintiffs have failed to make an effective joinder of necessary and indispensable parties.

3. The Complaint fails to state a cause of action for fraud.

4. The Complaint fails to state any cause of action on which relief can be granted.

7. Appellants concede item no. 1 above. Neither have the Corporate Plaintiffs filed an appeal.

8. Hereafter are VERBATIM REFERENCES in the Second Cause of Action of the THIRD AMENDED COMPLAINT, See Exhibit 17; in brackets are the allegations of VERNON S. CHEEVER, by Affidavit which supports the allegations in the Third Amended Complaint. (See Exhibit 16 and Exhibit D attached thereto).

9. Attached hereto, as Exhibit 20, is another Affidavit of Vernon S. Cheever, dated the 28th day of December, 1983; pages 3, 4, and 5 give a general picture of some of the more definite allegations of fraud in a narrative form as he tracks the deposition of Joseph A. Seethaler filed in the cause.

11. Attached hereto as Exhibit 21 is the Affidavit of Arlin Davis, dated the 25th day of January, 1984. This affidavit tracks the deposition of Joseph A. Seethaler, filed in the cause, and contradicts and declares false the testimony of Respondent, Joseph A. Seethaler. This affidavit supports Appellants Second Cause of Action. (See Exhibit 17, PR 520.)

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

1. There never was any necessity of a joinder of "necessary and indispensable parties"; it was only a ploy of the Respondents to cloud the issues of Fraud.
2. Exhibit 16 and 17 present an abundance of factual situations upon which credible allegations of FRAUD exist preventing entry of SUMMARY JUDGMENT.
3. The Appellants have sufficiently plead and provided supportive evidence sufficient to sustain the elements of fraud as set forth in DUGAN vs. JONES, 625 P2d 1239, Utah 1980). The ETTLINGER case, is not applicable in this cause for the reason in ETTINGER, the "guarantor", did not have a separate and independent cause of action of his own as is the case herein.
4. Where a number of entities have been induced by fraudulent representations, each one has his own choice of remedy and the cause of actions are separate and individual.
5. There never was any "compromise" or "waiver" of any claim belonging to UTAH COUNTY PACKING INC.

6. Even if there was a "waiver" or "compromise" it did not involve Appellants; VERNON S. CHEEVER, in his negotiations never acted in his individual capacity that would affect his cause of action herein.

7. Appellant, MARTHA T. CHEEVER never was involved in any negotiation to "compromise" or "waive" her claim.

ARGUMENT

Attached hereto as Exhibit 3, is the SUMMARY JUDGMENT entered by the Court on the 30th day of November, 1984.

Attached hereto as Exhibit 4, is the MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT, dated the 26th day of July, 1984 which is the underlying document upon which the SUMMARY JUDGMENT was entered.

Attached hereto as Exhibit 5, is the RULING (PR 746-747) of the Court that is the basis of the SUMMARY JUDGMENT.

The SUMMARY JUDGMENT does not specify the basis for entry of the SUMMARY JUDGMENT. Therefore, Appellant will discuss the five issues stated in its STATEMENT OF THE ISSUE PRESENTED FOR REVIEW, Page 1 herein.

1. WHETHER APPELLANTS MADE AN EFFECTIVE JOINDER OF NECESSARY AND INDISPENSABLE PARTIES.

A brief statement as to the nature of "indispensable parties" may be of some value in this argument.

...Thus, an "indispensable party" is merely a person without whom the Court will not or cannot proceed. An indispensable party is one without whom the Court will not proceed to any decree even as to the parties before it, or one who, if he is absent from the particular law suit, necessitate dismissal of the suit by the Court if he cannot be joined.

However, indispensable parties may be defined as those persons whose interests in the subject matter of the suit and the relief are so bound up with those of the parties that their legal presence as parties to the proceeding is an absolute necessity. Thus, it is declared as a general rule that an indispensable party is one whose interest in the subject matter is such that if he is not joined a complete and efficient determination of the equities and rights between the other parties is not possible; or that an indispensable party is one having an interest in the controversy of such a nature that a final decree cannot be made without effecting that interest. (59 Am Jur 2d 359)

The main thrust, for having "indispensable parties", is to assure that the liabilities and equities of all of the parties are satisfied in one law suit. In this instance, it would be to guarantee to the Respondents that no liability would reach to them by reason of non joinder or by reason of some latter liability that was to come up between the Corporate entities and the Respondents. It is conceivable that the Corporate Entities might have been joined for the reason that the Corporate Entities might be liable to the Respondents if it is determined that the Respondents are eventually found liable to the Appellants.

How can the Respondents complain. They are the ones that asked to have UTAH COUNTY PACKING joined. See Exhibit 6, bottom paragraph of 514. They are also the ones that asked to have UTAH COUNTY PACKING dismissed. See Exhibit 4, Paragraph 1, PR 580.

Respondents cannot complain that one who seeks to sue them is no longer a party when the record shows no Counterclaim or Crossclaim by the Respondents against the "Corporate Plaintiff" who were forced to join as "Necessary and Indispensable Parties" by Respondents, and then forced out by them. See Exhibit 4. Respondents never have filed any Counterclaim or Crossclaim against the "Corporate Plaintiffs" and therefore cannot be heard to claim a "defective joinder". Nowhere in this file is there any allegation by the Respondents that they have a Counterclaim or Crossclaim against any other party or that any other party may be liable to the Respondents if the Appellants were to succeed against Respondents herein.

As additional evidence of the "effective joinder" of UTAH COUNTY PACKING, see Exhibit 13 14, and 15.

The conduct of the Respondents, has only clouded the issue of FRAUD that is the paramount basis of the THIRD AMENDED COMPLAINT. See Exhibit 7, First and Second Causes of Action, PR 516 and 520.

2. WHETHER THE THIRD AMENDED COMPLAINT STATED A CAUSE OF ACTION FOR FRAUD AND WHETHER OR NOT SUCH DISPUTED ISSUES WERE BEFORE THE DISTRICT COURT TO PREVENT SUMMARY JUDGMENT IN FAVOR RESPONDENTS AND AGAINST APPELLANTS.

In DUGAN vs. JONES, 615 P2d 1239, (Utah 1980) the Supreme Court of the State of Utah, stated very specifically the required elements necessary in order to establish an action based upon fraudulent misrepresentation. In dealing with the question of whether a misrepresentation had been related by a real estate salesman, the Court noted that:

That elements of an action in deceit based on fraudulent misrepresentation are: (1) a misrepresentation; (2) concerning a present existing material fact; (3) which was false; or (b) made recklessly, knowing that he had insufficient knowledge upon which to base such representation; (5) for the purpose of inducing the other party to act upon it; (6) that the other party, acted reasonably and in ignorance of its falsity; (7) did in fact rely upon it; (8) and was thereby induced at; (9) to his injury and damage. (p. 1246)

For argument purposes, the Appellant will follow the nine elements in the order in which they are presented in DUGAN vs. JONES.

(1) A MISREPRESENTATION

Plaintiff in its THIRD AMENDED COMPLAINT, Exhibit 7, have set forth in its Second Cause Action, (PR 520) numerous MISREPRESENTATIONS, beginning at PR 521-524. Those paragraphs are set forth verbatim in Exhibit 17.

(2) CONCERNING A PRESENT EXISTING MATERIAL FACT

In Item 1. above there are many material facts which exist in the allegations made by CHEEVER in his affidavit filed herein. The disposition of JOSEPH A. SEETHALER, filed herein is a continuous dialogue of his denials of the claims of CHEEVER.

(3) WHICH WAS FALSE

Appellant evidence for this item, is found in Exhibit 17, and the comparisons that are made therein to the Affidavit of VERNON CHEEVER, Exhibit D of Exhibit 16. Of particular independent significance is the Affidavit of ARLIN DAVIS, Exhibit 21, which "tracks" the testimony of JOSEPH A. SEETHALER in his disposition.

(4) WHICH THE REPRESENTOR EITHER (a) KNEW TO BE FALSE OR (b) MADE RECKLESSLY KNOWING HE HAD SUFFICIENT KNOWLEDGE UPON WHICH TO BASE SUCH REPRESENTATIONS.

See 3 above. These are also questions of fact to be determined at the time of trial for the trier of the facts; not for SUMMARY JUDGMENT.

(5) THAT THE PARTY ACTED REASONABLY AND IN
IGNORANCE OF ITS FALSITY.

See 3 above. These are questions of fact to be determined at the time of trial for the trier of the facts: not for SUMMARY JUDGMENT.

(6) DID IN FACT RELY UPON IT

See 3 above. These are questions of fact to be determined at the time of trial. For the trier of the facts; not for SUMMARY JUDGMENT.

(8) AND THEREBY WAS INDUCED TO ACT

See 3 above. These are questions of fact to be determined at the time of trial, for the trier of the facts; not for SUMMARY JUDGMENT.

(8) TO HIS INJURY AND DAMAGE

Plaintiffs are loosing their house; they have stated they would not have entered into the loan "but for" the fraud of defendants. (Affidavit of VERNON CHEEVER, Exhibit 16, thereto PR 82 last paragraph and page 83).

For the purpose of having stated a cause of action of fraud the necessary allegation is found in paragraph 13, PR 521, of the THIRD AMENDED COMPLAINT, Exhibit 7, which is duplicated hereafter verbatim as follows:

13. That in the course of the negotiations, the Defendant, JOSEPH A. SEETHALER, made representations; concerning presently existing material facts; which were false; which he either knew to be false, or made recklessly, knowing that he had insufficient knowledge upon which to base such representations; for the purpose of inducing the CHEEVERS to act upon his representations; that the CHEEVERS, acted reasonably and in ignorance of the falsity of the said representations; that the CHEEVERS did in fact rely upon said false representations; that by reason, thereby, they were induced to be personally liable on the sale; that by reason of agreeing to be personally liable on the sale they have been greatly injured and damaged.

3. WHETHER OR NOT APPELLANT MAY MAINTAIN AN INDEPENDENT CAUSE OF ACTION AS SURETY.

The Courts RULING, Exhibit 5, (PR 746) states in part as follows:

The Court finds under these facts of circumstances that the reasoning of the ETTLINGER case cited in defendants brief is applicable to the case at hand.....

The Court in its RULING, Exhibit 5, refers to the "reasoning of the ETTLINGER case cited in the defendants brief is applicable". This is where the Court is absolutely wrong.

What the Defendant/Respondents say is the "reasoning" of the case, and what the Court says is the "law", is that Appellants herein cannot raise the issue of fraud. It is guessing that they state that with the citation found in the ETTLINGER case as follows:

What shall be done with the contract induced by fraud is purely a question for the determination of the party on whom the fraud is committed. He may repudiate it, and if he does so the surety may avail himself of the repudiation..... He may affirm it, in which case the surety cannot be heard to raise the question. He may suspend his action at least for a time, and the surety may not compel him to elect. (Emphasis added.)
ETTlinger VS. NATIONAL SURETY CO., 221 NY 467, 117 NE 945. (New York, 1917)

The question in that case had to do with whether or not the defense of fraud was available to the surety.

On page 946, the Court said, "This cause of action belongs to him, not to the surety. The latter is not defrauded and cannot maintain an action for damages occasioned by fraud." (emphasis added). Later on in the same paragraph the Court stated "in other words, what shall be done with the contract induced by fraud is purely a question for the determination of the party in whom the fraud is committed." (emphasis added).

In the case before the above entitled Court, THAT IS EXACTLY THE QUESTION. In ETTLINGER, the question involved the matter as to whether or not the surety could claim the control of the case when the fraud was committed upon the principal only (emphasis added) and not on the surety. That is not the case here. Here, the fraud has been committed upon the principal and the surety. The surety in this cause of action has his own independent CAUSE OF ACTION. That is, CHEEVER, was defrauded. UTAH COUNTY PACKING was defrauded too; it can do what it wants. In this case, UTAH COUNTY PACKING, has chosen to ALLOW the plaintiff, CHEEVER, to maintain its own independent cause of action against the defendants. (See CONSENT OF UTAH COUNTY PACKING, filed herein, Exhibit 8, PR 740.)

ETTLINGER doesn't say that a surety cannot maintain its own cause of action if it has its own cause of action in its own right. In the case before this Court, CHEEVERS, have their own cause of action in their own right. Appellants were not hindering UTAH COUNTY PACKING, from doing what it wanted to do. UTAH COUNTY PACKING even consented that the SURETY, the plaintiff, CHEEVER, can go ahead as they desire. See Exhibit 8. Notwithstanding the consent that's filed herein, ETTLINGER would not preclude CHEEVER from going forth as it desired. The ETTLINGER decision does not preclude

such conduct as stated herein. It only says that the principal cannot be "forced" to raise a defense which the surety seeks to raise in litigation to void its obligation which belongs singularly to the "principal" which is not shared by the "surety". That is not the case here. This case involves an "independent" cause of action by CHEEVER, for the fraud committed upon them as it relates to their own "independant" recession of their TRUST DEED. UTAH COUNTY PACKING has nothing to do with the TRUST DEED executed by the CHEEVERS. That is what the CHEEVERS are trying to do; that is, have their TRUST DEED invalidated.

The Court's RULING, Exhibit 5, PR 746-747 in the first paragraph focuses upon the ETTLINGER case and how it relates to at least two other subissues which will be discussed at this time.

The FIRST OF THESE SUBISSUES, is the issue of WHETHER OR NOT THE APPELLANTS COMPROMISED THEIR CLAIM WITH RESPONDENTS prior to the filing of the complaint herein.

The basis for RESPONDENTS argument is the AFFIDAVIT of JOSEPH A. SEETHALER, (Exhibit 15 herein, PR 582-583.) It should be noted that the file does not contain any record of the letter of June 18, 1981. For that reason, there is no affidavit in evidence to support the claim of Mr. Seethaler for his alleged

compromise. Nevertheless, the Appellant, without waiving the grounds for that defect, will continue to argue the matter.

First, the discussion shall only relate to whether or not there was a "ratification" by VERNON CHEEVER in his "capacity" as President of UTAH COUNTY PACKING INC.; the issue of "compromise" will then be discussed.

The Affidavits of VERNON CHEEVER, Exhibit 9, and BRUCE COLES, Exhibit 11, PR 755-756, show that UTAH COUNTY PACKING INC. never did "ratify" the contract, nor did UTAH COUNTY PACKING INC. ever "waive" any defense or claim of FRAUD. The negotiations were always ongoing trying to settle with MR. SEETHALER so that he would pay them the \$100,000.00 or so as a credit towards the approximately \$371,000.00 owing. Both the Affidavits of CHEEVER and COLES show that the discussions were ranging around a settlement of \$200,000.00 to \$250,000.00 which would be an approximate \$100,000.00 reduction on the \$371,000.00 owing. Since the claim never was settled, all the defrauded parties were free to file a suit because they were unable to reach a settlement. The fact that negotiations were going on is clear proof that there had been no "waiver" of any defense or any "ratification" of any contract.

The question of whether or not there was a "ratification" or a "waiver" under this set of facts is

a fact question and one for the trier of the fact, and not for Summary Judgment or any other type of Summary Disposition.

Neither was there a "compromise" of any claim. See Exhibit 9, Paragraph 3 therein. Such a fact question is for the trier of the facts, not for Summary Judgment.

6. Whether the Appellant, Vernon S. Cheever, may act in two separate capacities; one as President of Utah County Packing and at other times as a separate individual.

The second subissue has to do with the "separate entity" capacity of VERNON S. CHEEVER when he acted as President of UTAH COUNTY PACKING, INC. and also separately as an individual. Respondents would have us believe that he could not wear two separate hats at different times. If that were true then the personal guarantee on Exhibit 1 is void for the reason he cannot act as two separate entities.

It is clear that the determination of "ratification" of the contract or a "waiver" of the defense of FRAUD, by UTAH COUNTY PACKING INC., presents a factual question for the trier of fact to determine; there must be a trial before the Court or the Jury can determine that factual question.

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