1986

Vernon S. Cheever v. Joseph A. Seethaler : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

Vernon Cheever brought an action to rescind the Trust Deed and to allege fraud in the entire transaction. The trial

court, after prolonged argument and briefing, correctly ruled that Utah County Packing and Coles Brothers were necessary and indispensable parties to the action in that there were no facts known to Utah County Packing, the principal, that were not known by Cheever, the surety and that any action based upon alleged fraud belonged to the principal, who in this instance, chose to affirm the contract. Utah County Packing, having affirmed the contract, had thus waived a claim for fraud, which election was binding upon the guarantor. Vernon Cheever was therefore estopped from asserting any claim for fraud. Because the statute of limitations had run on the corporation, the Court correctly granted the defendant Seethalers' Motion for Summary Judgment.

ARGUMENT

Introduction

The Seethaler Corporation, a meat packing business, was sold to Utah County Packing Company, also a corporation. Prior to the sale, Joseph Seethaler took Vernon Cheever, President of Utah County Packing, on a tour of the plant facilities. Mr. Cheever was given the opportunity to see for himself and assess the equipment involved in the sale. An appraisal was also obtained. (R. 697-698) After agreeing upon a price, the parties decided that it would be necessary for Cheever to provide additional security for the transaction. Consequently, at the

closing, Cheever signed the documents as President of Utah County Packing and also signed, with his wife, a Trust Deed and Trust Deed Note offering their real estate as security. The amount of the Note, clearly set forth without ambiguity, was for \$371,750.00. Mr. Cheever, formerly having done business as a realtor, could not have misunderstood the terms of the simple Trust Deed. (R. 28-31).

Upon experiencing some difficulty with the machinery used at the meat packing plant, Mr. Cheever wrote a letter to Mr. Seethaler complaining of the equipment and sought damages in the form of a compromise on the sale price. After some negotiation, there did indeed occur a settlement of sorts between Cheever, representing Utah County Packing and Seethaler in that the price of the plant was reduced. (R. 642-45, 697-98).

Utah County Packing continued operation, never seeking to rescind the transaction. Eventually, Utah County Packing could not successfully operate the business and bankruptcy proceedings ensued. Seethaler, through Notice of Default, sought his remedy based upon the Trust Deed and Note. At that point, Vernon Cheever, as an individual, brought this action to attempt to enjoin any foreclosure and to rescind the Trust Deed and Note, claiming that he did not read the Trust Deed and claiming he was defrauded in the sale.

After numerous procedural battles, Seethaler brought to the Trial Court's attention the fact that the meat plant transaction involved Utah County Packing and Coles Brothers, Inc., and that Cheever, as an individual, merely provided additional security. Furthermore, Utah County Packing and Cheever, as an officer of the corporation, had affirmed and ratified the Contract and received the benefits thereof, and Cheever, as an individual could not bring an action for rescission, because the allegations related to fraud in the sale, if true, were properly to be brought by Utah County Packing. If Cheever, as an individual, had any allegations of fraud at all to assert, it could only be fraud as to the signing of the Trust Deed which was wholly unambiguous. The Trial Court was never compelled to even reach the questions of fact as to fraud allegations in the sale since the only parties entitled to assert such fraud, were Utah County Packing and Coles Brothers and they were barred by the statute of limitations.

Notwithstanding appellant's brief, which gives a contrary impression, this case upon appeal is conceptually and procedurally very simple.

POINT I

APPELLANTS' BRIEF DOES NOT MEET THE STANDARDS
SET FORTH BY THE UTAH SUPREME COURT AND APPELLANTS'
CASE, AS STATED, CANNOT PREVAIL UPON APPEAL.

Respondents respectfully submit that litigants filing briefs with the Supreme Court of Utah are under a duty to inform the Court of the facts, the nature of the proceeding below, the issues, the relevant law, to supply references to the trial record and to do more than superficially comply with the sub-heading requirements.

Generally, respondents found appellants' brief to be insufficient to adequately inform this Court of the nature of the case, the actual disputes, and the rulings of the lower court. Appellants' arguments were unorganized, largely unsupported by law and respondents had difficulty in succinctly and completely addressing appellants' brief.

Specifically, appellants failed to set forth the pertinent facts of the case. Appellants merely listed six facts which it attempted to prove before the lower court. The entire "Statement of the Case" was largely without reference to the trial record except for the multiple exhibits attached.

The Utah Supreme Court has previously addressed the problems which the structure of appellants' brief presented. In Hobbs v. Denver and Rio Grande Western Railroad, 677 P.2d 1128 (Utah 1984), the appellants therein apparently cited only those facts which supported its claim to the exclusion of other material

facts supportive of the trial court's Decision. The Supreme Court ruled:

In his presentation on appeal, the plaintiff has recited facts that support his claim of error to the exclusion of those properly admitted, material, and supportive of the trial court's decision. Axiomatically, we affirm the lower court in such event. [Emphasis added].

Respondents respectfully submit that the failure of the appellant to clearly present its case to the Supreme Court, as well as its failure to present the material facts upon which the Trial Court relied, and the failure to cite to the record constitute a situation wherein appellants' case as stated, is one which cannot prevail upon appeal.

POINT II

THE TRIAL COURT WAS CORRECT IN RULING THAT UTAH COUNTY PACKING AND COLES BROTHERS, INC. WERE NECESSARY AND INDISPENSIBLE PARTIES.

As set forth above, the transaction in question upon appeal is the sale of a meat packing plant by Seethaler Corporation to Utah County Packing Company and Coles Brothers, Inc. The lawsuit was originally only initiated by Vernon Cheever, as an individual. Respondents submit that there are at least two reasons for Rule 19(a) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, which require the joinder of necessary parties:

Rules 19(a) and 17(a) both seek to protect the same interests: judicial economy and

fairness to the parties in litigation. The purpose of Rule 19(a), "which requires the joinder of indispensable parties as a condition to suit, is to guard against the entry of judgments which might prejudice the rights of such parties in their absence." Sanpete County Water Conservancy District v. Price Water Users Association, Utah 652, P.2d 1302, 1306 (1982). In addition, by requiring joinder of necessary parties, Rule 19(a) protects the interest of parties who are present by precluding multiple litigation and contradictory claims over the same subject matter as the original litigation. [Emphasis added].

Camp v. Murray, 680 P.2d 758, 760 (Utah 1984).

The Trial Court determined, by Order dated July 17, 1984, (R. 514-15) that Utah County Packing Company was a necessary and indispensable party to the action. One of the basis for that Ruling was that the cause of action for fraud, if any, belonged to the corporation, and not to the individual plaintiffs. A second basis for that ruling is that if Utah County Packing were not joined, Vernon Cheever could claim that the self-same acts by the defendants constituted fraud against Vernon Cheever individually, but not against Vernon Cheever as President of Utah County Packing Company. This is precisely the type of "contradictory claim" that Rule 19(a) was designed to prevent.

"The plaintiff in an action for fraud has the option to elect to rescind the transaction and recover the purchase price or to affirm the transaction and recover damages." Dugan

v. Jones, 615 P.2d 1239, 1247 (Utah 1980). The defrauded party must make an election of remedies. Utah County Packing has clearly elected to affirm the contract. This is evidenced by the failure of Utah County Packing Company to bring a timely action for rescission, by the fact that Utah County Packing Company has made several payments on the Contract, and by the letter written to Joseph Seethaler. (R. 691-695, 642-45, 697-98).

In addition to having elected to affirm the contract, Utah County Packing Company has waived any claim it may have had for damages. This is evidenced by the accord and satisfaction which was reached shortly after the sale (R. 642-45, 697-98), and by failing to bring a timely action for damages.

Utah County Packing Company has, therefore, elected to affirm the Contract and has waived any claim for damages. Vernon Cheever sought, however, a directly contradictory result, that of rescission. The result would clearly have been inequitable, and Rule 19(a) prevents such a result.

Where the existing plaintiff has failed to join other necessary plaintiffs, the entire case must be dismissed. Kent v. Murray, 680 P.2d 758, 759 (Utah 1984).

The entire transaction, except for the Trust Deed Note, which Vernon Cheever signed personally and the Deed of Trust to the subject property signed by Mr. and Mrs. Cheever, was between

the corporations of Seethalers and Utah County Packing and Coles Brothers. Assuming, arguendo, that the fraud allegations made in plaintiffs' Complaint were in fact made, they were not made to Vernon Cheever in his capacity as guarantor, they were made to the purchasers, Utah County Packing Company and Coles Brothers, Inc., and neither of those parties made any claim against the Seethalers based upon fraud. Vernon Cheever, therefore, as guarantor, cannot raise such an issue because he does not stand in the position of the debtor. The misconception of the plaintiff, Cheever, in this case concerns the right of subrogation. This right of subrogation would place the guarantors, Cheever, in the place of the creditor were he required to pay off the debt of the debtor, Utah County Packing and Coles Brothers, Inc. There is no right for him to stand in the position of the debtor. The guarantors right against the creditor is based entirely upon the terms of the agreement of the guaranty and nothing more. 38 Am. Jur. 2d Guaranty, § 127, Page 1135 (1968).

The law does impose an obligation upon the creditor (Seethalers), to do nothing that would impair the security which has been taken for the debt. The Courts have even gone so far as to give the guarantor an independent right of action to force the creditor to seek the security that has been given before relying

on the guaranty; however, none of the rights given to the guarantor include the right of substituting himself in the position of the debtor. There is absolutely no authority for the guarantor to be subrogated to the position of the debtor and, consequently, unless the debtor raises the appropriate issues, the guarantor cannot.

This is not to say that the guarantor would not have a right of action independently for fraud if he were induced to enter into an agreement of guaranty based upon fraudulent misrepresentations to him. However, that type of fraud would relate to intrinsic fraud within the instrument. There must be independent fraud affecting the guarantor separate and apart from the contention of fraud which the debtor could raise but does not. For example, if the purported guarantor was imposed upon to sign a paper which he never intended to sign or did not know his signature was being affixed to the loan guaranty agreement, there would be no contract, regardless of whether the lender was a party to obtaining the signature or whether the lender was negligent in not checking with the purported guarantor before advancing the money to the borrower. First National Bank of Grand Junction v. Osborne, 28 Utah 2d. 392, 503 P.2d 440 (1972).

The Trial Court was correct in ruling that Utah County Packing and Coles Brothers were necessary and indispensable

parties to this action in that the thrust of plaintiffs' allegations were allegations concerning damages done to Utah County Packing and not to Vernon Cheever as an individual, and in that Vernon Cheever's claims as an individual were contradictory to his actions as a corporate officer of Utah County Packing.

POINT III

AS CONCEDED BY APPELLANTS, ANY ACTION BY UTAH
COUNTY PACKING AND COLES BROTHERS, INC. WAS BARRED
BY THE APPLICABLE STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS.

Utah Code Ann. § 78-12-26 (1953 as amended) provides for a three-year statute of limitations for actions for relief on the ground of fraud or mistake, and also provides that "the cause of action in such case shall not be deemed to have accrued until the discovery by the aggrieved party of the facts constituting the fraud or mistake." The corporation plaintiffs filed their Complaint on July 19, 1984. The crucial issue with respect to the statute of limitations is, therefore, whether they discovered the facts, which are the basis for their claim before July 19, 1981. The uncontroverted evidence in this matter establishes, as a matter of law, that the corporate plaintiffs did discover the facts upon which their claim is based before July 19, 1981, and their causes of action are, therefore, barred.

As is evidenced by the Affidavit of Joseph Seethaler, (R. 642-45, 697-98), on or before June 18, 1981, Mr. Cheever,

President of Utah County Packing, contacted Mr. Seethaler with respect to certain alleged defects in equipment. Mr. Seethaler disputed that the equipment was defective, but agreed to make an adjustment of approximately \$1,200.00 in the price of the accounts receivables, which Utah County Packing was purchasing at that time. (R. 642-45, 697-98).

Subsequently, on or about August 19, 1981, Utah County Packing Company sent a letter to Mr. Seethaler detailing certain alleged defects in the equipment. Although the letter indicates that some of the repairs were performed after July 19, 1981, the letter clearly sets forth that all of the alleged defects were known or should have been known prior to July 19, 1981. (R. 691-96).

As set forth in the statute, the crucial part in this matter is not when Mr. Cheever, as President of Utah County Packing Company, decided that he had been defrauded, but rather it is when he discovered the facts upon which he finally based his conclusion. The uncontroverted evidence in this matter clearly indicates that he discovered the facts upon which his claim is based prior to July 19, 1981, and the claim is, therefore, barred.

Coles Brothers, Inc. was a partner of Utah County Packing in this transaction, and the knowledge which was gained by Utah

County Packing Company must, therefore, be imputed to Coles Brothers, Inc. Further, the letter is signed by O. Kent Coles, who was the Vice-President and Director of Coles Brothers, Inc.

The Trial Court ruled that Utah County Packing Company was a necessary and indispensable party to Cheevers' cause of action for fraud. Utah County Packing Company's cause of action for fraud was barred by the applicable statute of limitations and Utah County Packing Company was, therefore, never effectively joined in the action. It thus followed that Cheevers' cause of action for fraud had to be dismissed, with prejudice, for failure to join a necessary and indispensable party.

Appellants' claim in their brief that it is anomalous for Seethalers to first claim that Utah County Packing must be joined in the action, and to then claim that Utah County Packing Company's action must be dismissed. There is nothing anomalous about this situation. The only anomaly would be if the result advocated by appellant were to be obtained.

As is evidenced by the Affidavit of Vernon Cheever, dated August 24, 1984, (R. 697-98), Utah County Packing Company compromised all claims it had for defective equipment against Mr. Seethaler. Further, Utah County Packing continued to operate the business after it knew or should have known of any fraud on the part of Mr. Seethaler, and thereby waived any claim for fraud

and accepted and ratified the Contract. Finally, Utah County Packing has also waived its claims for fraud by failure to assert them within the applicable limitations.

Where Utah County Packing Company has accepted the benefits of the transaction and has waived any claims it may have had for fraud, it would certainly be anomalous for Mr. Cheever, the President of Utah County Packing Company, to now come in and assert a contrary position.

POINT IV

CHEEVER, AS AN INDIVIDUAL AND GUARANTOR, HAD NO STANDING TO BRING AN ACTION FOR RESCISSION WHEN ANY ALLEGED DAMAGE WAS DONE TO UTAH COUNTY PACKING/COLES BROTHERS AND CHEEVER, AS PRESIDENT OF UTAH COUNTY PACKING ELECTED TO SEEK DAMAGES, AND THROUGH COMPROMISE TO AFFIRM AND RATIFY THE CONTRACT.

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